Town of Hurt, Virginia
Called Council Meeting Minutes
September 20, 2022

Hurt Town Council held a called meeting on Tuesday, September 20th, 2022, at Town Hall. The meeting
openedat 6:01 PM by Mayor Gary Hodnett with a quorum present.

Roll Call
Members present: Mr. Luke Perdieu, Mr. Gary Poindexter, Mrs. Shirley Barksdale -Hill, Mr. Bob Majure,
Mr. DonneyJohnson, and Mrs. Kathy Keesee

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
Invocation: Mr. Perdieu
Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Mayor Hodnett

Opening Remarks
MayorHodnett stated that no one is here; we will move on. No additions to the agenda. Luke has the
information for Municode, so we can take thatup while we are here as well.

PublicComment Period
No publicinput was presented.

New Business

Water & SewerHookup/Recovery Fees: Mr. Poindexter stated: the new listing of hookup and recovery
fees—I'vereviewedthose with the MayorandJoe a couple days ago. | had a few questions myself fora
fuller understanding of what we're proposing to do. What we're looking at here is a way to reduce the
losses that we experience inthe form of depreciation. To capitalize and be in a better position, not only
for our auditors and financial statements, but any potentialloans that may need to be looked at. In the
future for capital projects, they take a look at that. The easy way to read this is simply to start at the left
with metersize, and most residentials are 5/8-inch. If you're doing new construction, building a house
for example, you would be looking at $2,200 in connection fees and $2,306 in capital recovery, and then
the combined effect of that will be $4,506. The wastewater connections willnot apply unlessyou're in
one of the few areas that have town sewerage, so most people will not be affected by amounts listed
underseweruntil it's expanded. The quarterly base charge is listed here, but of course that's already in
place. Asyou increase the metersize, the fees increase proportionately, relative to the baseline, to
ensure that we are coveringthe costs (real and hypothetical) to be a bettersituation. A fair amount of
work has gone into developing this and thanks to Tom Fore, Joe, Mayor, and anyone else involved in the
process. | was not actively involved in the process of developing this particular sheet. I can tell it took
some time, so | appreciate the efforts. It'sone of the many things that | wish would have gotten done
earlier, butthat's waterunderthe bridge. It is something that | feelneedstobe in place going forward.
We needto continually better our position financially in all areas, not the least of whichis our enterprise
fund. We all know that waterand wastewaterare critical infrastructures not only to residential citizens,
but also the prospective corporate citizens. Prospects will look at our position and they will look at what




efforts are being made to improve our position going forward to gauge our level of interest. That being
said, I'm just one person out of six. Off the top, | think that this is a good starting place forthe changes
that we need to make. I’'m prepared to support this proposalas it is. Mayor Hodnett asked any other
comments, questions? Mr. Perdieu asked, is this similar to what othertowns have, rate wise? Mayor
Hodnett stated, we would be competitive. Mr. Majure asked, and this still includesthe 15% cost?

Mayor Hodnettreplied, if it's an overrun, like if you're going down let's say Knollwood, the waterline is
on the right-hand side going in, if somebody builds onthe left-hand side, the line’s got to go underthe
road. That's where the additionalfees come in of cost plus 15%, so they would be paying additional fees.
Mr. Poindexter stated, that's animportant point that | forgot to mention earlier, but what we have here
is in addition to — not instead of —what is already listed in the Master List of Ratesand Fees, andin fact,
if and when we adopt this proposal, we would need to update the Master List to reflect that. Mr. Majure
stated very good, and asked, does our current wording say that this money is going into a fund for those
capital improvements? Mayor Hodnett replied that's where it will go. We already have the LGIP
infrastructure account; the capital recovery fees willgo into that 100%. Mr. Poindexter stated, to clear
that up with a little history... for a long time we had three accounts with reserve funds, one was for
general, one was called water, and one was for the Police Department. Ayearor two ago, the waterone
was split. There's now a generalone for water and a designated one for capital improve ments. That’s
where the quarterly base charge goes if I’'m correct. Mayor Hodnettreplied, 100% of the quarterly base
charge foreach house goesinto the infrastructure, which is capital improvementfund. Mr. Poindexter
stated, so what you're proposingis for this to go in to continue to build that? Mayor Hodnett replied
absolutely yes, in two years we got it to $200,000. Mr. Majure stated that's very good, so this will help
that as well. Isthere any plan or wording about updating these in the future, a yearly update, five-year,
10 years? Mayor Hodnett stated | would say that would have to be examined when budgetis done,
because if we're going to make any changesto it, it's going to have to correspond with the budget. Mr.
Poindexterstated that’s my thoughtsonit, because every Springwhen we go through the budget
development process, we typically look at our rates and fees that may have a question aboutthem. That
would be the main time to look at it. Should special circumstances arise subsequent to that, we can take
it up at the time. Mr. Majure stated, so we are notlocked in this for 10 years? Mayor Hodnett replied
no. Mr. Majure stated very good, I’'min favor for this as well. Mayor Hodnett asked, if no more
guestionsdo | heara motion? Attorney Eller stated we have to have a public hearing on that. A called
meeting will take place October 13th for a public hearing. A motion was made to advertise and have a
called meeting with public hearingon October 13th.

Motion: Mr. Poindexter Second: Mr. Perdieu Passage: Unanimous

Industrial Water & Sewer Rates

Mayor Hodnett stated, we have Staunton River Plastics movingin and we don’treally have an industrial
rate setfor these guys, sowe needtolook at an industrial rate. Mr. Majure asked, is this just for water,
oris it for sewer? Mayor Hodnett stated, wellwe’ve got to look at water. We have an industrial rate for
sewer, but myadvice would be, even though we just passed it, we consider taking that higher. What we
are going to be looking at for Staunton River Plastics is that they are going to be payingon a quarterly
basis — instead of the $24 meterfee, paying $600. Mr. Majure stated, so we have decided to make it
betterforindustrial. Mayor Hodnett stated most towns do give industrial discounts. Mr. Perdieu asked,
do you think that will help us get more businesses? Mayor Hodnett stated industrials are always going




to look at where they can save. | would say you would be hard pressedto draw an industry in here at
$14 per1,000. Mr. Majure asked, how much lowerdo we want to go, or do we not want to go lower?
Mayor Hodnett stated, my suggestion would be to look at $10. Mr. Majure asked, why is that? Mayor
Hodnettreplied, because if you shop around and look at what they're paying in otherlocations, it's
going to be, most of them are going to be lessthan 10, but| don't want to step south of 10 in my
opinion. Mr. Majure stated, and this is something we can change in anotherbudgetyear, butwe needto
do before they getontothe 14. They're already locked into the 14 though right now, technically? Mayor
Hodnett stated, | think if you read our rates and fees, it says in there that it's kind of negotiable with the
industry. Mr. Poindexter stated, it typically tends to be because utility rates and tax rebates and various
perks like that typically are part of an incentive package; that’s part of how the economicdevelopment
process works. It’s what are you going to charge for everything, for what period of time you are going to
do that as an encouragement forthatindustry to locate here. Mayor Hodnett stated, we have a rate for
wastewater; we don’t have industrial water. Mr. Perdieu asked, and the industrial wateris lower than
the residential? Mayor Hodnettreplied, noit’s the same. Mr. Poindexterasked, let me clarify, are we
needing both—forindustrial water and wastewater? Mayor Hodnett stated, | think we have an
opportunity to probably move wastewaterup alittle bit, but we also are going to probably needto
move water down some. Mr. Poindexter stated, I've got a suspicion that we do. Especially since there
are some industries out there that are higherin water usage than others. We lost a good prospect at
some point in the past over power rates, so the same thing can happen with any utility. Mayor Hodnett
stated, it should be that whateverwe dois going to always have the caveat of subject to negotiations,
because if we're going to bring in, let's say, a half million gallon a day water user, they're going to expect
a little bit betterrate than 100,000 gallons a day wateruse and they're going to negotiate, and negotiate
hard. Mr. Perdieu asked, what do we pay for waterper 1,000? Mayor Hodnett stated we can look at it.
Mr. Perdieu stated, if we have a heavy waterindustry come in, they are going to try and gettheir own
rate anyway. Mayor Hodnett stated we want heavy water users. We’ve got two products, waterand
taxes, we have to make money where we can make it. Tom Fore stated, justa reminderto everybody,
because | have a lot of knowledge of what's happeningin Altavista, you have about a 200,000-capacity
agreement, and you're at about 100,000 usage. If you have one customerthat wantsto come in here
and get 100,000 gallons a day, you are going to have to renegotiate yourarrangement with the town,
unlessyou’ve gotanotherwater provider. Just something to keep in mind, but again, you're exactly
right, the conversation you're having about being able to pick up that service and improve your system
and industries —that's the way that is accomplished. Mrs. Barksdale-Hill stated, I'm thinking that if
you're aiming for the heavy water users, they're probably going to be the strictest negotiators because
they know that that's going to be a big expense. Butit's a good site to have. | can imagine it being quite
a bit of back-and-forth, becausethey are goingto try their bestto get more. As far as setting rates, when
| was going to check on penalties for not paying your water bill, | called severaltowns and we talked
abouta lot of stuff and they were saying that some of them do lower for industries, and Altavista was
one of them—to draw more business, so it was right on target to handle it that way. Tom Fore stated,
but whatever we negotiate to get to that number, the other way of helpingis you’ve got to be fair about
it. In Altavista, fairnessis done; it makes no difference whattype of industry you are, this is what you
pay. We don't negotiate with any industry coming in about that. Also, if the Council decides they want



to waive the fee, they basically use generalfund money to coverthat cost for their enterprise fund, but
it still hasto be paid for because enterprise is separate. You can use tax money to create the incentive.
Those are things to keep in mind; anotherthing that you could do is encourage more water, butyou
could create a tiered water usage. In otherwords, if we use 5,000 gallons a day, we will do this, if we use
10,000 gallons a day, we will do that; you create that tier as an incentive and then you keep lowering
your rate for each one of them. Mr. Perdieu asked, so Altavista — their business and residential system
2022 Master List of Rates and Fees, their business residential costis $3.02 per 1,000 and theirindustrial
is $2.96 per 1,000 gallons, the Town of Hurt is $4.53 per 1,000, any residential outside of the town is
$6.04 per1,000, and industrial outside of the townis $5.90 per1,000. We are close to triple if not more
than Altavista. If we were competing with Altavista based on just this, they are going to win all day long.
We are paying more than the industrial overthere anyway. Mrs. Barksdale-Hill stated, | can imagine a
business would study this before they make the decision, or eventhough it may be negotiable, they're
going to also look at where you are starting. Tom stated, that’s why | brought up the tiered rates. Mr.
Perdieu stated, and we may needtodo that, do a tiered rate, if you have somebody who is going to use
awhole bunch, $8 and somebody whois going to use a lot maybe $10. Mr. Majure stated one thingthat
| keep thinking aboutis that, and | have looked at the system with Joe. If we geta customer here that
needs to use more than 200,000, would oursystem be able to handle that, and would we have a way to
pay forthe upgradestothat system? Tomreplied, getting ready to do this secondary project, which is
12-inch lines underthe railroad track, so that is going to improve your ability to build more overthere;
withoutthat you're limited.

MayorHodnett stated, "l thinkit is a reasonable rate foran industry coming in. Most of them are going
to try to be below that. This oneis nota heavy water user, but we have to have a little roomfor
everyone. Mr. Majure stated, it sounds like we're all in favor of lowering the rate for an industrial user.
Is that correct? No one wants to keep it the same. Mr. Poindexterstated, | don’tthink we can keep it at
$14; sitting here thinking how we can do something structured with a range, say $10-$12, with language
that they are subject to negotiation based on volume and all the factors. Mayor Hodnett stated, | would
say why would you wantto complicate it? Mr. Majure stated, | agree there and we don't know what
specific industries are going to require at this point. | think that's probably why Altavista didn’tapply
because it does keepiit fair sounding as well. Like we said, we can always change this in a different
budget meetinglateron, but we don't wantto be changing that consistently. Do we have any estimates
on what Staunton River Plastics is going to be using? Mayor Hodnett stated, it's going to be pretty much
whatthey are using overthere in Altavista, like a heavy residentialuser. Mr. Poindexter stated, their
type of manufacturing doesn’t use much water; they just need waterforgeneral purposes such as
cleaning, drinking, restrooms, etc. Mr. Perdieu stated, | think if we just set it lower, say $10, and if
somebody wants to come in and negotiate, we can always add a tiered schedule. If they are saying they
are going to use a whole bunch of water, we can’t just give it to them, we can say we will give it to you
at a later date. Mr. Majure stated, as long as we are covering the cost. Do you all feelcomfortable with
the $10? Mr. Poindexterstated, one thingI’'m thinking about is if you start out at the $10 and you figure
that as beinga good floor, there’s no more negotiating below that without knowing. Mayor Hodnett
stated, doyou honestly think that we are going to be able to bring somebody inat $11 or $12 per 1,000?
It will be impossible. Mr. Majure stated, we're doing it as goodwill to make us beneficialto businesses
and industry coming in here, saying that we're not trying to profit off just the waterfor the industries.



Mr. Poindexterstated, it doesn’t sound like we have many options but to just go with $10 then. Mr.
Majure asked, before  make amotion do we have to advertise this? Attorney Eller stated yes, you just
needtostate the rate that you're proposingand thenit will be presented at the public hearingon
October 13th. A motion was made to propose an industrial water usage rate of $10 per 1,000 gallons
that will be presented at the public hearing on October 13th.

Motion: Mr. Majure Second: Mrs. Barksdale-Hill Passage: Unanimous

Municode

Mr. Perdieu gave out a packetthat is from Civic Plus. If you want to look at it later, | gave everybody
their own copy justso you have it. A couple things to think about... they are usually at 12 to 18 months
lead time; they may be even longeron this to get everything completely functioning on there. They may
have something available —the simpler stuff —it may go live half way through the process, dependingon
how it works with them. I'll explain to you the pricing and the paymentschedule and if you have any
guestions, I'll do my bestto answerthem. Your one-time charges are your overall recodification and
that's based off of what John has sentthem. It'sabout 350 pages; they're looking at doing a 10-point
fontonline, so overall, that'll be the total scope of the project. They highly recommend us paying them
to do genderneutralization which turns all the he’s and she’s into howeverthey can make it completely
gender-neutral. It's easier forthemto do it while they're going through everything. Anyway, it'sonly a
S350 one-time fee. If we decide we wantthemto do that later, it's much more expensive. That'sup to
the council to decide whetherornot they want to be gender-neutral. If we do the gender neutralization,
and they go ahead and make all of our current code gender-neutral, then everything we generatefrom
here on out, needs to pretty much mimic their gender-neutral so that we don't have to keep paying
themto go back and re-do. Mrs. Barksdale-Hill stated, so when we have Kelsie update it, she is going to
stick with it. Mayor Hodnett responded she’s not going to be updating it. We are doing the package in
which they take care of it. Can you give me some examples of gender-neutral? Mr. Perdieu stated most
of ourcode is all male genderoriented —he, they, | don’tknow, | guess to be completely politically
correct, they offerthis as a package. Mayor Hodnett stated, soit's going to be like he/she? Mr. Perdieu
stated yeah, he/she. Attorney Eller stated, you don’t want to take it too far. Mayor Hodnett stated ‘they’
becomeseveryone involved. Mr. Perdieu stated, | don'tknow how they do it; but they just highly
recommend we do this upfrontif we're goingto do it. Mayor Hodnett asked Attorney Ellerif he can
write gender-neutral? Attorney Eller stated yeah, we’llfind out; I'll call that lady what they are going to
do. Mr. Perdieu stated it depends onif you guys think it's more of a politically correct type. She highly
recommended it. I said | would suggest it to you guys. Attorney Eller stated, we have done he/she inthe
new ordinance for years. Mr. Perdieu stated, here is an example thatyou have on page 5; they say
‘painted in a workman-like fashion.’ The workman-like, they would change it to ‘skill’ or ‘professional
fashion.’ Itjust takes the genderout of it. Mrs. Barksdale-Hill stated they are taking it out; that sounds
good. Mr. Perdieu stated we don’t have to decide at the moment, but we need to decide before we
contact them. Mayor Hodnett stated, John, why don’t you have a talk with them, and update us at the
October meeting. Mr. Perdieu stated, also a custom banneris a one-time fee, to have ourlogo at the top
of the page, so the total of these one-time fees would totalto $10,551. We would pay that based off this
payment schedule —25% when we sign, 25% when they submit. Half of it will go on this FY and half on
the nextone. Mrs. Barksdale-Hill stated she was planningto have ordinances ready by the November



meeting, butsince the laptop wasin use elsewhere, she has stopped working onthem. Mr. Majure
stated he will bring it back tomorrow.

Report from Mayor

MayorHodnett stated | would like to change Joe’s title from Public Works Coordinator to Public Works
Director. | know there's going to be some questionsin your minds such as well, he doesn'tdirectly
supervise other people. Yet, he needs people and the only reason he doesn't have themto supervise is
that we can't afford them. I've highlighted what a Public Works Director does: oversees installation and
maintenance of sidewalks, curbs, gutters, signage, and otherinfrastructure elements —he's already
doing that. Ensures that all town facilities are properly maintained, and that repairs are conducted as
needed - he's doing that; participating in community events, promoting publicworks projects, and
informing citizens about various activities — he's taking care of that now. Developing budgetfiguresin
his dept. for fieldwork, including construction projects, material costs — he's doing that. He'sinvolvedin
the budgeting for public works. He's overseeing the next part of it, managing a team of engineers,
analysts, planners, inspectors, surveyors and other professionals who perform functions of planning,
designing, building, maintaining, repair, and inspection of infrastructures — he does that; he oversees the
engineers on projects he's working on, coordinating with other departments and local governments to
ensure that projects are completed on time and within budget. | think he's pretty much handling that,
overseeing the operation and maintenance of public works vehicles/equipment, including dump trucks,
bulldozers and stuff like that. We don't have it, but he's taking care of pickup trucks. Creating plans for
new infrastructure projects and updating existing projects to meet current standards and regulations. |
don’tsee anything there that he's not already done, otherthan supervising people that he desperately
needs, and we can't afford to pay. Mrs. Barksdale-Hill stated, wellsometimes titles can sometimes open
more doors forgrants or funds. Mayor Hodnett stated, well Joe, welcome to the Public Works Director
side of it —congratulations.

Mike Jones stated, whenyou geta chance, check youremail. There's a recent occurre nce in Virginia,
South Carolina, North Carolina, and as close as Farmville, a group of people known as First Amendment
Auditors. What these people do, they will come into a Town Hall with a video camera and start following
employeesaround. They are very pernicious and want to know what you're doing, how you're doingit,
and they pushthe limit on where they canand can't go. Whenyou look at the video, you'll see some of
theissues and their entire purpose is to get you to yell at them and get you to tell themto leave from
public spaces. They'll come and stand and look at the clerk's office, forexample. It's gettingto be a
rather fast-moving problem. The closest one to us is Prince Edward County and that is tied in with a
group called Sovereign Citizens. That's to be aware of whenyou're in Town Hall and somebody says they
are doing a First Amendment Audit. You must treat them according to the law. If they want to come in
and standin the lobby all day, they can do it. We've got a policy on interference, but that's something
that you needto be aware of and once you see the video, | think you’llknow why. The otherthing,
making a commenton gender-neutral, part of the problem that's arising already, is with police and law
enforcementforms where agender hasto be put to identify someone. There's also concerns on
whethergender D will be placed on driver's licenses and photo IDs, and one of the ones that's gettinga
lot of traction is that some groups do not wantthe police to broadcast gender descriptions of a suspect.
‘A personrobbeda bank’is aboutthe only way they want to give a description, so police groups are
watching that carefully. One thing that hasn't affected us yet, butit's happenedinthe last week —



throughout the entire country as close as E.C. Glass High School. EC Glass HS on Monday gota call from
an out-of-state cellphone that stated there was machine gun inside the building and it was going to be
used. The impact that will have on us, because the termis called ‘swatting’, where you call in these fake
events. We've gottwo schools, and it can very easily happento them. We are well ahead of the power
curve on school security but it's one of those thingsin both county and state police; we are anticipating
this. For those of you who have childrenin school, and they have cell phones, | would suggestyou geta
text-based emergency contact message because inthe event of amajor emergency where thereis a lot
of police activity, you might not be able to getthrough on the cellular line. You might want to establisha
plan that saysin an emergency text each otherbecause text slides go off a totally different system. Just
wanted to keep you up to date on that. If a citizen or vendor texts or emails you on your personal or
work phone and you talk about business, then not only your conversation, but anything that the vendor
sendstoyou could also be subjectto FOIA. If you're comfortable in doing so, you might want to advise
folks that any official conversation or email is subjectto FOIA. Anotherone is we have classes that |'ve
sentto you.l've sentyou anotherreminderof that. Also doeseverybody have that Council ID card and
staff ID card? We wantto do a periodic audit so if you don't have one, just make arrangements with
Ellen to get one. Any questions forme? It's beenaverybusy time. Mrs. Barksdale -Hill stated that she
received a letter from the Virginia Senior Citizen League and it seemed like a threatto her. Please note
the actual survey answer will not be publicized unless your statement or actions contradict your survey
answer. That's okay. Shortly after the survey due date assessment of how wellyou answerthe survey
will be. If you choose notto returnthe survey, you will not be considered foran endorsement by this
organization. Your failure to return the survey may be interpreted by our membersupportersand gun
owners, Commonwealth as an indifference, if not outright hostility, toward the right to keep and bear
arms. | found this pretty stupid. Mr. Perdieu stated, | looked into that, because | got mine the other day.
It's a small groupin central Virginia, and they rank political candidates on their scale of how pro-gunyou
are. Are you willing to stand up for Second Amendmentrights. Itis a relatively small group, but | looked
at the past yearsthat they have published their results from this survey. Nobody inthe Town of Hurt or
Altavista has responded. Mike Jones stated, just to give you an idea, this group was headed by Philip Van
Cleave; I've been dealing with him forover 15 years with his group, mainly at the Capitol. They're very
active. They do know the law, and they do stay within it, butthey can dance up to the edge of the pen.
They have not been violent at the time thatI've known of, but they are exerting First Amendmentand
Second Amendment rights. Just make sure you pay close attention to your personal mailbox. Don't leave
your car unlocked. It's a different world and you're seeing it and things happenin small towns that never
would have happened before. People willturn on each other. All | can say is it's good for business.
MayorHodnett stated so moving forward John, you are going to talk to Municode for our next meeting.

Meetingadjournedat7:12 PM

AReloce Stah Fany ottt

Kelsie Sligh, Clerl é/ary Hod nett, Mayor




